
 

 

 
December 14, 2017 

 

 

 

NOTICE OF ADDENDUM 
ADDENDUM #3 

 
 
Subject:  Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Services; Request for 

Proposals # TS-2017-004 
 

Date Due:  December 19, 2017 at 2:00 PM EDT 

 
 

Dear Sir or Madam: 
 

The Columbus Regional Airport Authority (CRAA) hereby issues an addendum to the 
subject solicitation: 
 

 Answers to questions received regarding the Solicitation (attached below). 
 

Unless otherwise stated, your response shall be considered as including this 
addendum.   
 

Should you have any questions or need additional information, please contact Katie 
Heisler, at CRAAProcurement@columbusairports.com. Thank you for your interest in 

doing business with the Columbus Regional Airport Authority. 
 
 

Sincerely, 
 

Katie Heisler 
 

Katie Heisler  

IT Contracts and Procurement Specialist 
Office of Contracts and Procurement  
 

cc: file 
 

mailto:CRAAProcurement@columbusairports.com


Subject:  Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP) Assessment Services; Request for 
Proposals # TS-2017-004 

 
Date Due:  December 19, 2017 at 2:00 PM EDT 

 
 

Question 1: What size is the user base for the ERP ecosystem - Microsoft 

Nav, Oracle Primavera, TMS, Property Management? Responses on either 
total or individual systems would suffice. 

 
Answer 1: Oracle PCM: 50 users, Oracle P6: 25 users, Microsoft Dynamics NAV: 50 
users, TMS: anticipates up to 400 users (all employees), Property Management 

software: likely less than 10 users. 
 

 
Question 2: Section 3.1.1 states the requirement of providing professional 
references for whom Proposer has provided services within last 5 years. 

Does an engagement completed in 2012 qualify for this criteria? 
 

Answer 2: Yes. 
 

 
Question 3: Section 5.6 (Page 17) states that the 'Ability and Capacity of 
the Proposer' section shall "fully address RFP Requirements Section 3.2.3." 

Section 3.2.3 identifies that the "Proposal must include a project-based 
fixed-fee price..." Please confirm that the 'Ability and Capacity of the 

Proposer' section should not include any price proposals. Please confirm 
that all price-related proposals should be included in the 'Price Options' 
tab. 

 
Answer 3: Price proposals must be submitted within the “Price Options” tab. 

Responses under Section 3.2.3 must address Proposer’s Ability and Capacity to 
perform the Assessment Services; specifically, confirming all requirements under 
3.2.3 can be met by the Proposer, and providing an initial proposed project plan.  

 
 

Question 4: Please confirm that staff resumes for proposed staff should be 
included in the response to the 'Ability and Capacity of the Proposer' 
section along with our proposed resource plan (RFP Requirement 3.2.3.1.) 

 
Answer 4: Yes, résumés may be submitted in the “Ability and Capacity of the 

Proposer” tab.  
 
 

Question 5: As part of the proposal, we are expected to perform a 
comprehensive evaluation of designated CRAA work groups.  Can you 

please indicate how many CRAA resources would be involved from each 
work group and their designated location? 
 

Answer 5:  CRAA anticipates twenty (20) CRAA resources will be involved from the 
various work groups that were identified in the RFP.  It is anticipated that all 

meetings will be scheduled at John Glenn International.   
 



 
Question 6: As part of the assessment, will resources from John Glenn 

Columbus International Airport (CMH); Rickenbacker International Airport 
(LCK); and Bolton Field Airport (TZR) be collocated in one location for the 

project, or should we anticipate sessions needing to be conducted at each 
of the airport locations? 
 

Answer 6: CRAA anticipates hosting all sessions at one location (John Glenn 
International).  

 
 
Question 7: Within the RFP, it was noted that “Many of these applications 

are managed by the CRAA Enterprise Software team in collaboration with 
vendors.” Does CRAA anticipate the need for vendors to be involved in the 

project or do CRAA resources possess all of the necessary knowledge? If 
third party vendors are required, has CRAA communicated the need for 
their participation in the project such that proposed timelines can be met? 

 
Answer 7: The CRAA Technology Services staff possess most, if not all, required 

knowledge of the current applications, and CRAA staff will coordinate any necessary 
additional information that is needed from its vendors. 

 
 
Question 8: CRAA has requested a fixed priced proposal; however, the RFP 

states that integration of the Talent Management Solution (TMS) with other 
current key applications is unknown at this time. Additionally, CRAA is also 

in the process of selecting a cloud-based property management 
application, with an estimated go-live date around mid-2018. As part of our 
fixed fee proposal, should we assume that all requirements related to these 

two systems can be assessed so as not to delay our timeline?  If not, what 
assumptions should we be making? 

 
Answer 8: The TMS product has been selected (Cornerstone OnDemand), and the 
property management application selection is in progress. Yes, CRAA expects to be 

able to provide requirements for each of these applications/solutions to the selected 
Consultant.   

 
 
Question 9: The RFP states that we should “Identify how the strategic 

business plans align with the ERP strategy”. Have these strategic plans 
been finalized; and if so, would they be provided immediately upon the 

start of the project? 
 
Answer 9: Yes, the Strategic Business Plan has been finalized, along with other 

supporting documentation. The CRAA will be able to release it immediately to the 
selected Consultant.    

 
 
Question 10: Requirement 3.2.1.2 states that we must “Capture the 

business needs, i.e. Needs (“must haves”) versus Wants (“nice-to-
haves”).”  Does CRAA have a governing body in place for the project such 

that Needs vs. Wants can be finalized should there be differing perspectives 
from the various work groups? 



 
Answer 10: The business needs will be captured through interactions with the 

working team for each group. The CRAA Project Sponsor will provide final direction 
for any differing perspectives.   

 
 
Question 11: Requirement 3.2.1.5 states that we must “Research the 

marketplace for currently available ERP solutions that meet CRAA’s overall 
needs”.  Does CRAA expect a full software selection as part of this project 

(selection criteria, onsite demos, scoring, etc.) or simply a market analysis 
with potential solutions meeting CRAA’s requirements? 
 

Answer 11: CRAA expects the selected Consultant to provide insight on either 
potential single ERP solutions; multiple solutions that would work together; or other-

than-software solutions, which may be appropriate for CRAA based on Consultant’s 
expert opinion after conducting an assessment of CRAA’s environment and needs. 
Consultant’s expertise should be based in a strong, thorough understanding of the 

current solution marketplace, but also the best practices of companies similar to 
CRAA.  

 
 

Question 12: The RFP indicates that we would need to assess and define 
the business case for, or against, a CRAA ERP solution, including but not 
limited to CRAA’s expected costs of ERP implementation and ongoing 

support. The exact costs of an ERP would not be able to be assessed until 
full negotiations had been completed. Does CRAA simply want an estimated 

costs knowing that actual negotiated costs could vary? 
 
Answer 12: Yes; CRAA understands that true costs of an ERP solution purchase – if 

that is a recommended course of action coming from the Assessment – aren’t able 
to be defined until such a purchase is initiated, negotiated and awarded.  

 
If the selected Consultant for this RFP ultimately recommends CRAA purchase a new 
ERP solution, then CRAA expects the Consultant to provide within the business case 

estimated costs, or cost ranges, of ERP solution(s) that would potentially be a good 
fit for CRAA. Estimated costs should be based on Consultant’s industry knowledge 

and past experience, and should be inclusive of ongoing support cost estimates. 
 
 

Question 13: In section 3.2.3, the RFP states that “The planned Statement 
of Work must identify project milestones, and any assumptions supporting 

the proposed schedule/project plan.”  Is CRAA expecting that a SOW be 
included with our proposal, or is this simply a note that milestones and 
assumptions must be included once a SOW is ready to be written? 

 
Answer 13: CRAA expects a proposed, high-level Statement of Work (SOW) to be 

submitted as part of the proposal. CRAA understands changes will be made to the 
SOW through collaboration of CRAA and the selected Consultant after contract 
award, but Consultant’s typical or recommended tasks, activities, durations and 

assumptions must be captured in the SOW. 
 

 



Question 14: Is there anything in particular that has prompted the 
Authority to conduct an ERP assessment at this time? 

 
Answer 14: Current CRAA applications are mostly siloed based on business needs, 

with some integration occurring (some of which is custom-developed), and CRAA 
wants to assess the current environment and structure to possibly leverage 
applications more efficiently, if possible. 

 
 

Question 15: Does the Authority have any internally- or externally-imposed 
deadlines for implementing new technology?  
 

Answer 15: No, the CRAA does not have such a deadline, since the results of this 
Assessment are unknown right now. However, please refer to Addendum #2, 

Answer #3 for insight on timing of this requested Assessment. 
 
 

Question 16: Regarding travel expenses, our understanding is that 
consultants are expected to stay in the Columbus area for the duration of 

the project, including weekends.  (We infer this because of the policy that 
only the first trip to, and the last trip from, CRAA shall be reimbursed.)  If 

this is the case, will consultants be eligible for the $150 per diem on 
Saturdays, Sundays, and holidays? 
 

Answer 16: If the proposer’s staff cannot travel home on weekends due to distance 
from Columbus, proposer should note this within the proposal. CRAA does not 

require consultants to stay onsite over weekends, however travel plans for the 
selected Consultant must be planned in advance with the CRAA Project Manager as 
the overall project schedule is agreed upon; travel plans need to be reasonable for 

the project, as determined jointly by both parties. The per diem rates are tied to 
Federal per diem policy. 

 
 
Question 17: The RFP indicates that respondents should provide a project-

based, fixed fee.  Should this fee be inclusive or exclusive of travel-related 
expenses? 

 
Answer 17: If additional travel expenses will be required, proposers should state 
this within the proposal, giving an estimated range of expected travel expenses. 

The CRAA Consultant Reimbursement Policy will then apply to travel that occurs, 
should the proposer be awarded. Travel expenses will be considered separate from 

the fixed-fee price proposal. 
 
 

Question 18: Given the fixed-fee arrangement, is the Authority open to 
progress payments? 

 
Answer 18: CRAA often negotiates milestone payments tied to specific, agreed-upon 
deliverables. Proposers may include such suggested milestones in the proposals, 

and upon an award CRAA would review and negotiate the milestones with the 
selected Consultant. 

 
 



Question 19: Has CRAA identified a specific contact to whom the cover 
letter should be addressed to in the RFP proposal responses? 

 
Answer 19: Proposal cover letters can simply be addressed to: Office of Contracts 

and Procurement. 
 
 

Question 20: Has CRAA identified a dedicated project manager from the 
Authority for this assessment project? 

 
Answer 20: The CRAA Technology Services Program Manager will be serving as the 
CRAA Project Manager for the assessment.  

 
 

Question 21: Does CRAA have a budget for this project that can be shared? 
 
 Answer 21: CRAA is not releasing the budget for this project at this time. 

 
 

Question 22: Can the strategic business plans referred in section 1.3 be 
shared?  

 
Answer 22: Please see Answer #9 above. 
 

 
Question 23: Does CRAA have a target start date and completion date for 

the ERP assessment scope requested in the RFP?  
 
Answer 23: Please refer to Addendum #2, Answer #3. 

 
 

Question 24: How many full time employees does CRAA currently have, by 
airport? 
 

Answer 24: Please refer to Addendum #2, Answer #4. Employee count is across all 
airports as we operate as one organization. Additionally, please see Answer #6 in 

this Addendum (above), if this question is around interview logistics.  
 
 

Question 25: How many departments / groups will be involved in the 
interview sessions for the assessment? Has the CRAA identified a specified 

amount of hours / days for interviews? 
 
Answer 25: Please refer to Addendum #2, Answer #7. Also, CRAA has not specified 

amount of time/days needed for the assessment work; proposers must explain their 
proposed process, and provide estimated, typical timeframes, along with 

assumptions of CRAA resource availability used to arrive at such estimates.   
 
 

Question 26: Is CRAA considering replacing all software in the ERP 
‘ecosystem’ referred in section 1.2 (i.e. Kronos, Business Intelligence, 

etc.)? 
 



Answer 26: CRAA does not yet know the results/recommendations that will come 
from this requested assessment, and so does not have preconceived plans at this 

time.  
 

 
Question 27: When is the expected go-live date for the Talent Management 
System implementation currently in-process referred in section 1.2? Can 

you share the name of the selected Talent Management System vendor?  
 

Answer 27: Please refer to Answer #8 above. Final contract negotiations for the 
TMS purchase are still being finalized, so the implementation dates are not yet firm.  
 

 
Question 28: Is CRAA considering both on premise and cloud deployment 

methods for a potential future ERP system replacement?  
 
Answer 28: Please refer to Answer #26 above. 

 
 

Question 29: As a part of any assessment, would CRAA expect any change 
management outreach with staff? 

 
Answer 29: Since recommendations from this assessment will not be acted upon as 
part of this same project, change management outreach should not be necessary. 

However, proposers should include typical communication plans or communication 
management used in their routine assessment work, or communication 

recommended for CRAA in this particular project. 
 


